OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT

EDUCATION COMMITTEE
Monday, January 8, 2007
SAU Office
7:00 P.M.

MINUTES

Attendees: Christy Greene Butch Estey, Arthur Knight, Ray Cote, Gail Cromwell, Tom
& den, Beverly Bacon, Bart Goodeve, Craig Hicks, Mary Allen, Bill
MKinnon, e Hayes, Linda Potter, Keith Burke, Dick Dunning, Sue

Gpley
Christy Greene called the meeting to order at 7:08 p.m.

1. Approval of Minutes
¥ Meeting of December 12, 2006
Ray Cote motionel to accept the minutes of the December 12, 2006 reeting. Beverly
Bacon scond. All in favor.

2. ConVal Graduation Requirements Update

Gail Cromwell distributed acopy ofthe current High Shool Graduaion Rolicy with
revisionsand a copy d the High Shool Compeency Assessments (See Attachment).
Christy said that we agreed to take unde advisement dl sides communicated.
Shesaid tha he god isto have atimeline developed before theend o tonight®3
meeting to deermine when this will be completed.

Beverly Bacon asked if we a onetime used competendes. Keith said tha in current
terminology every sngle course in the high shod will have alist of competendes
for successful passing ofthe course. Alternaive ways of meeting the competendes
would dso beavailable. Other items notlinked directly to acourse were also a
requirement for graduaion. For example, each gudent had to give a gpeech as well
as awriting ssmple scored by acommittee. Beverly asked why we did notcontinue
to use compeendes. Keith said tha ove time it was deermined that it did notmeet
our needs. In addition, it was cosly to administer.

Joe Hayes said tha they were minimal essential competendes. Sue Copley said tha
they were based on \ery low level recall skills and knowedge Noneof the highe
order thinking ills was nesded.

Gail Cromwell said that shewas unsure why we did notgo with the NHSBA
recommendaions

Craig Hicks said that before the credit item hits, as stated on hefind page of Gail 3
handout it sates tha the Supeaintendent shdl establish rules for implementing this
policy in coopeation with the high shool Prindpd, and sdl beresponsble for



enauring tha dl high shool courses indudeoneor more gopropriate comprehensve
exam(s) or other assessment by the start of the 2008 2009 shool year. Competency
Assessments will be selected, conduded, and reviewed in conjundion with the
provisionsof Policy ILBA.

Ray asked aboutwhat hgppensingdethe classroom. Keith sid tha the State says
tha every school district mugt have on file alist of competendes for every course in
thehigh £hool. He bdieved tha we have them now butwas unsure how articulated
each was. It goes hand in hand with thenotion that credit can beaccumulated in
other ways than dtting in the classroom Ray asked if the State was saying that in
order to ge credit for a course, compeencies mus bedemondrated. Keith said that
heis unsure if the State has goneso far asto sy tha onemud demondrate
competendes in order to get credit for a course.

Keith said that there is the State@ requirement to file competendies for a particular
course. One would assume tha a sudent would acquire at least 60%

Tom Welden said tha his concern is tha the compeendes might deermine how
many aedits we require. He wouldn®want to hire someonetha is competent at
60% Tom was concerned tha the bar was being lowered.

Craig Hicks said tha we have to putcompetencies in place by 2008. Vé currently
have 26 aedits. Wha we are currently doing can beimproved upon. Br example,
16% of the freshmen dass is geting éther a@Oor an &Oin English. In Algebral,
28 kids are getting adDOand 11 a&e getting an FQ His god is to improve the year
two orthree grades. Earth Science D25%of the freshmen sudents are getting adDO
oran FQ He said tha thisis unacceptable. Of the seniors, 60 ®@0exist. Of the
juniors, 108 ®@0and 160 GB0in core subject areas exist. We nead to make sure
tha the basic education is good.

Gall said tha if you ingruct each teacher to come up with the key ideas in asubject
tha each gudent should master it would notbe difficult to ddine competency. If you
look & the nunmbers of AAOMBOand @A there are more highe grades than lower.
Gradeinflation is aproblem. Colleges tend 1 look nore & SAT@ and ACT@. For
our pumposes, agrade of a G@Owould bea reasonable way to deermine competence.
Craig said that we undestand wha we want out of agraduae.

Christy asked for the undereducated sudents, how many times would astudent have
to take a course before they could moveon? At least twice was theresponse. Christy
said tha adifferent kind of god would have to be arrived at for these sudents. Craig
said that we have students who ae seniors with five F@0and five credits. We won®
be able to hdp everyone

Bart said tha there should bean oppotunity tha while complying with the State that
we have alist on file of wha will take place in the classroom  We should try to
connect what we need to do for the State with wha we need to do or ourselves. He
asked Craig aboutthe course subject gradedistribution hediscussed. Qaig said that
fulfilling 26 ceditsis too big ahurdle for some. He added that he wanted as many
kidspossible with aConVal diplomato have 16 aedits of vdue Bart asked if Craig
was more concerned with the 16 ore credits. Craig said that it is very important to
complete the 16 aeditsidentified. From there, dectives will build on he 16 aedits.
Bart said tha we have to have alist on file for the State and asked what the process
for that was.



Keth said tha the State has tried to develop sme templates plus sample
competendes. He said tha US History could bearticulated in much of the same way
and we might be able to create our own template. The competencies would be
similar.

Ray asked wha the minimum grade for receiving aedit in the high £hoolwas. Je
Hayes said tha it was 60%. Ray said tha the changein the core is very important.
The conveasation tha makes this work isif 60%is enough. e 20 aedits make s0
much snse for him fiscally. Ray said tha it isimportant because it has abig impact
on boh the sudents and the teachers and a decision should notbe made lightly.

Joe Hayes said tha wherever we decide to ddinetherelationship beween credits and
competence, if we say tha a D- isinaufficient, it will take more resources. The
resources will beused for remediation and provision of an expanson of opportunities
for those dready competent. More resources will berequired. We are currently
trying o gaher the competendes in areas provided by he State. We are trying o use
a congstent format.

Tom said that the bdance is achievable by raising our sandards and lowering the
credits. By redudng credits, we will have the play room for sudents notto take the
extra sx courses which will provide play for those tha are required to repeat a
course. It enhances the students tha we worry about by having astronge core and
the kill sets that they need.

Craig said that having both math and earth science take place ove theentire year
might produce better results.

Keth said tha hemade a nunber of recommendaionstha are important to address.
Oneof the key dementsis theidea of planning. Based upon helegd opinion, it is
clear that 20 credits becomes the sandad for high school gradudion. Alot of
students will optfor more butthere is dso reasonto doubtthat.

Christy asked if we keep block scheduling and goto 20 eedits, howyoungour
average graduae would be. Keith said tha we should look & ourfreshmen dass to
determinewhat each sudent is looking for, whether it is continuing on b afour-year
competitive college or something other.

Arthur Knight said tha heremembers going into his senior year with enoudh aedits
to graduae. It was his undestanding that hehad to do hs senior year anyway. He
thoughttha a student should have to have four years of education.

Keith said tha hewould have needed four years of English to remain in school.
Arthur said tha there should beatie of credits and service.

Keith said tha credits should notbeafundion ofthe anountof seat time.
Alternaive methodsof credit acquisition an beachieved by neeting measures of
competency.

Gail Cromwell read the suggested polcy on exrly gradudion.

Mary Allen said tha shestill hangson © the possibility of 23 aedits. She doesn®
feel we are a the point of dropping block scheduling. By thetime akid has gone
through her junior year they have been through 21 blocks. She pointed outtha if
we peggdl it a 70%it isonly 10 ponts highe than where we currently are. She
asked if there are nomally lower grades at the beginning oftheyear. Joe Hayes said
tha thegrades Craig dted ae from thefirst quater in core areas. We would have to



lookto seif thegrades hdd astime went on. He said tha data will beavailable in
three weeks.

Mary said tha we have to look & the competendes but be careful where thebar is set.
Bart motioned to accept Keith’s recommendations 3 — 7. In addition, we would
want to see differentiated diplomas, and achieve competencies in place. These
must be tied together.

Gail Cromwell said that shethinkstha paents are the key paties here. Sudents
should take more responsbility.

Bart said tha if we want item three with paental consent then we need to date that.
Tom said tha he doesn®want to complete only haf of wha we need. We can have a
target and work toward tha. The expectationscan beraised as we go aong.

Bill McKinnon sid that in terms of establishing plansfor each sudent, unless
flexibility exists to address core subjects and repeat core subjects, hedidn®think it
could bedonewith 26 cedits as thethreshold. Dropping the credits to 20 would
allow a student to repeat the subject and learn the subject rather then ge by with a
@Oand ¢t the credits.

Keith sid that hedidn®feel that any of our graduates are incompetent. The critical
point of this is the planning process. ConVal has been in existence for amog 36
years and he does notever recall ConVal dropping back on the amountof credits
required. Thefirst thing tha is critical isto look & wha changing the credits to 20
would mean. Focuson thefreshmen dass by ddermining ther gods should be
looked a&. Keith outined wha different scenarios might look like for the gods of
different sudents. The plan has to do with wha yourgod is a theend ofhigh
school. In oder to meet the needs what do we as a school district need to provide?
If the mgjority of sudents optfor the 20 aedit minimum, then decisonswould have
to bemade

Bill McKinnon aked Keith if hefelt that some students only needed 20 cedits.
Keith replied tha when looking & the end pont of what a sudents desires, we would
need to look & the credit requirements to gd there. The 20 aedit program meets the
needs of sudents desiring to go into thework force right out of high £hool. He
suggested that we get a picture of what the needs are of students before moving
forward.

Bill McKinnon sid that if it isredly individud plansfor al, and ssme students can
go with 20, we might as well set that as our minimum.

Ray Cote said hesuppoted the Supeintendent@ recommendaion  urvey the
students. He suggested tha we survey the juniors because they have been through he
school and ae looking oward senior year. We could ask them if 20 aedits were in
place, would they be gore today. Secondly, no netter wha decision we make, there
will beunintended consequences. Sudents may drop outbecause they can® achieve
the credits or they might have something dick when taking acourse for the third
time. Maybeby raising the bar we adlow students to catch up. Ry asked if it was
possible to ever come off of block scheduling with our ATC.

Keith said tha it would bepossible because it existed prior to the block.

Joe Hayes said tha there are many different iterationsof the blodk that incorporate
shorter classes. There may bea better idea that incorporates both.



Ray addal tha there isamotion on hetable to move forward. He said tha heisin
favor of the motion.

Gail said tha sheis oppo®d to nunber seven. Outlines for sudents heading in
different directionsare dready laid out Shesaid tha we knowthat at least two-thirds
of our graduates are going on b wllege Thedifference is for tha student who
desiresto go on ¢ technica school. We have to made fundanental changesin how
we look & sudents. We have to bemore flexible. She did notobject to nunber three
or differentiated diplomas. She was oppo®d to number seven. In terms of ConVal
never having gore down in aredit, she doesn®think that there was a solid reason for
going up b twenty-six credits.

Bill McKinnon amended the motion to include a move to a twenty credit
minimum in conjunction with the points raised.

Craig Hicks second.

Mary Allen asked why not twenty three.

Bart said tha we should deal with theissues of planning and mwmpetency as one
motion and then we can fight for the credit requirement.

Bill said that we couldn®plan.

Bart and Mary agreed tha we could plan, we plan now.

Bill said that the planning has to do with the credits. Mary said tha sudents will plan
for those credits now and howto add on hem.

Bill said that if the booksays 26, pat of the plan is howthey will meet 26.

Bart said tha the argument tha Bill and Gail make reinforce his worse fear. How can
we toss nunber seven ou of the equaion? Bart said tha hewould like usto adopt3
through 7 and ontinueto debae the nunber of credits required to graduae. Mary
agreed.

Gail asked what a competency based transcript was? Shefeelsthat it is afour page
transcript in great length. They are areal negative.

Bart said hewould like to see this directed to amethodobgy toward grade point
distribution.

Gall said tha shefelt it would hut our sudents in the college process.

Keth said tha the State has sandads for competency based transcripts. They
receive agrade and howthey received aredit is outlined. Examples could be
provided. Craig asked why we have to sparate.

Bart said tha he cannotadoptthe 20 aedit requirement.

Christy said that we still have Board members who are not fully convinced aboutdl
of the postives of thisissue When looking & granting dternaive credit, Christy said
tha it will changetheface of our school.

Ray said tha thething hesees tha is missing is that we have notraised the
competency. The comment was made earlier tha ConVal had never reduced the
credit requirements before. For thefirst time, we will beraising the requirements for
passing acourse.

Keith said that hewants to make sure tha the education committee does notlose sight
of wha the curriculum committee recommended. They recommended atwenty credit
diploma for a select few and twenty-six for everyoneese. Now we have agroup of
people fuded by forumsin the pubic. No onehas recommended a twenty credit
diplomawho srves on acommittee.



Beverly said that the question wes asked aboutaccepting the origind doaument at the
last meeting. The vote was plit.

Craig said that from onemeeting o the next, it is difficult to ge the same answer. He
said tha we can provide as many aedit diplomas as we would like. Bart said tha we
can®do ha. Craig said that we were going 1 biing a20 aedit for dl anda 26
diploma of distinction forward.

Joe Hayes said tha the group nerer abandored theidea of the 26 minimum credit
requirement for fear tha students would take the road of least resistance and nottake
thechdlenge Itisgill aconcern of the committee. If the 26 credit diplomais
abandonal, the committee would notsuppot moving forward.

Christy said that we are all committed to aqudity education.

Craig said that Christy did notsay a qudity educationfor al.

Bart suggested tha we zero in on he motions

Mary asked aboutthe 20 credit motion Bill made. When shelooksat the open
electives proposd she asked if it met State sandads. Keith said tha it did.

Mary said if you putsx credits on, we movecloser to 23 cedits.

Craig asked howhe would beinsured tha we would address this for the population
tha heistrying to address. We are dways worried éoutthe pecentage of sudents
who will achieve 26 and beyond cedit.

Tom Welden asked when thelead plan was brought ébout Keith said tha it wasin
20002001. Tom said tha nunber three was in there as a core fundamental. If we
don®have definitive targets, Tom felt we would not get there. Tom read from the
report on ills of the American workforce. He said tha if we raise the compeendes
the 20 aedits would notbeof concern. In addition, hesaid tha Keith®
recommendaion was made on sat time.

Christy surmised that the motion was made by Bart and an amendment was
made by Bill.

A vote in favor of Bill’s amendment would mean that the motion would be not
only passing 3 — 7 but also finalizing our graduation requirements at 20 credits.
Mary Allen said point of order. This vote would be on the recommendation to
take it to the full Board.

Christy said that Stewart could not support a 20 credit diploma. He could go for
26 and live with 23.

Christy called for a vote on Bill’s amendment on Bart’s motion.

Gail said that both of these motions should be tabled because it had no meaning.
Looking at 3 — 7, there are things that are our business and some which are the
high school’s business.

Bart’s motion is that we recommend the adoption of the Superintendent’s
recommendations 3- 7 and the report he presented.

Bill’s amendment is to do that and set the minimum credit requirement for
graduation at 20.

Bart clarified that his motion is to adopt those five things. Bill’s is for those five
things and a 20 credit minimum requirement.



Craig sad tha heis concerned with thetimeline Years go by. We are rushing o gd
something in motion. He is concerned with when the 20 will bein motion. How are
we going b mesh this dl togehe? What are dl of these different components and
how are they going to come together?

Craig asked that both be taken off the table to develop an action plan and then
revisit this.

Ray said tha hewould vote agang both because hefeels tha it is a packagetha we
aretalking about Bart( piece is abig one thingsseem to ge los. Thisisnotanew
convasation. Hefelt tha adraft with bulet items and imeline needsto be
developad. The motion is not precise consdering theimportance and impact. He
said tha heis notready to recommend.

Bart withdrew his motion. Bill withdrew his amendment.

Gall said tha if we look at the School Board poicy, it is exactly wha we want. The
requirements are listed and ous are notthesame. Gail said that everything is there
except the planning piocess.

Bart asked howwe define competency and where do we rest thebar. Until we
address this we can® make a decision.

Tom said that hefelt it was afull Board issue A lot of usare confused. We can
clean it up and biing it back to theBoard on he 23°.

Christy agreed and asked for volunteers to beon the committee.

Keith suggested tha this question beasked bedore the full Boad.

3. Technology Plan Status
Keith said tha the Technology plan has been filed with the State.

4. Foreign Language Committee
Bart Goodeve said tha the last meeting ook place with Keith, Paul, himself and
languaeteachers to plan and develop thereport. Thelanguaye teachers were excited
aboutlooking 4 this. At this point there is no work produd.
Bill McKinnon aked if the QvhyOteach foreign languaye was arrived a. Bart said
tha hedid nothave notes with him butundestood ha to bethefirst charge of the
committee.

¥ Rationale

¥ Next Steps
5. Other
Christy Greenecaled the meeting o aclose a 9:06 p.m
Respectfully submitted,

Brendal. Marschok



